
 City of Parma Heights 

Council Meeting 
6281 Pearl Road 

City of Parma Heights 
Clerk of Council                            6281 Pearl Road              Parma Heights, OH 44130 

440.884.9600 x5658 (phone)             440.884.1802 (fax)            www.parmaheightsoh.gov 

Danczak 
Title Only 
Suspend 
Rules 
One Reading 
 
 
Everett 
Title Only 
Suspend 
Rules 
One Reading 
 
 
Haase 
Title Only 
Suspend 
Rules 
One Reading 
 
 
 
Walsh 
Title Only 
Suspend 
Rules 
One Reading 
 
 
 
 

Stavole 
Title Only 
Suspend  
Rules 
One Reading 
 
 
Rounds 
Title Only 
2nd of 3 readings 
 
 
 
Everett 
Title Only 
2nd of 3 readings 
 
 
 
Danczak 
Title Only 
2nd of 3 readings 

 
 RES 19 

Tax 
Everett 
Title Only 
Suspend Rules 
One Reading 
 

Monday, September 13, 2021 7:00 PM 

 
The Council will accommodate public comments during the meeting. Anyone may also 

email comments to the board prior to the meeting at creason@parmaheights.us 
 

1. ROLL CALL 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

3. MOMENT OF SILENCE 

4. ACTION ON MINUTES  

A. June 28, 2021 Council Meeting Minutes 

B. July 7, 2021 Special Council Meeting Minutes 

C. August 9, 2021 Special Council Meeting Minutes 

D. August 30, 2021 Special Council Meeting Minutes 

5. REPORTS FROM MAYOR AND DIRECTORS 

A. Recreation Department, Joe Tal 

B. Economic Development Department, Joe Sebes 

C. Finance Department, Katie Iaconis 

D. Service Building Department, Michelle Teresi 

E. Senior Center, Trish James 

F. City Engineer, Dan Bender 

G. Mayor’s Report, Mayor Byrne 

LEGISLATION  

6. Consideration of A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE AMOUNTS AND RATES AS 

DETERMINED BY THE BUDGET COMMISSION AND AUTHORIZING THE 

NECESSARY TAX LEVIES AND CERTIFYING THEM TO THE COUNTY FISCAL 

OFFICER.  ONE READING ONLY 

7. PUBLIC SESSION 

8. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

A. Adjourn to executive session to discuss personnel matters regarding 
employment. 

9. ADJOURNMENT 

CITY HALL WILL BE OPEN FOR THE COUNCIL MEETING 

MASKS ARE REQUIRED IN CITY HALL 

mailto:creason@parmaheights.us


City Council 

Meeting Minutes 

June 28, 2021 

7:00 PM 

 

1.  ROLL CALL WAS TAKEN AND THE FOLLOWING MEMBERS WERE PRESENT: 

• Members Present 

Councilmember Danczak 

Councilmember Everett 

Council President Gallo 

Councilmember Haase 

Councilmember Rounds 

Councilmember Stavole 

Councilmember Walsh 

• Members Absent 

None 

• Also Present 

Mayor Byrne 

Dan Bender, City Engineer 

Katie Iaconis, Director of Finance 

Trish James, Senior Center Director 

Mike Pokorny, Director of Law 

Chrissy Reason, Clerk of Council 

Mark Schneider, Assistant Director of Law  

Joe Sebes, Director of Community & Economic Development 

Joe Tal, Director of Recreation 

Michelle Teresi, Building, Housing, & Recycling Coordinator 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

3. APPROVAL OF THE JUNE 14, 2021 COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Councilmember Stavole made a motion to approve the June 14, 2021 Council meeting minutes. 

Councilmember Everett Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds and Stavole 

Nay: None 

 

4. Reports from Mayor and Directors 

• Joe Tal, Director of Recreation 

•  105 pool passes have been sold so far 

• Soccer registration began 06/24 

• Repairs are being done to the tennis and pickleball courts 06/30 through 07/03 

• Joe Sebes, Director of Community & Economic Development 



City Council Minutes 
June 28, 2021 

Page 2 of 8 

 

•  Work on the mural has begun 

• Trish James, Director of Senior Center 

• The Senior Center will open for indoor activities beginning July 1st. The Congregate 

Meal Program will begin on Monday, July 12th. 

•  There will be 2 seating for lunch, less tables, 4 participants at each table instead of 8 

and 36 seniors can be accommodated at each seating. If both seating’s are full we 

would be able to serve 72 seniors a day which would have us at the same totals as 

before we closed down. 

• The activities we are offering are Yoga, Bingo, Chair Exercise, Chair Volleyball, Crafts, 

Horse Races hosted by Greenbriar Nursing and Care Home, Bingo and Ice Cream 

Social hosted by Crossroads Hospice, Cooking Classes hosted by Vista Springs and UH 

Hospital will be returning to provide Blood Pressure Checks. 

• Distributing $12,500 worth of coupons ($50.00 each) to low-income seniors to 

purchase locally grown fresh, fruits, vegetables and honey. In addition to our city and 

Middleburg Heights, for the past 2 years we have distributed to coupons to Parma, 

North Royalton, Berea, Strongsville, Brooklyn, Brooklyn Heights, Seven Hills, 

Independence, Brecksville and Broadview Heights as those cities were not able to 

participate in the program. 

• The Department of Senior and Adult Services had additional funds from last year and 

we applied for an additional $20,000 and we received notice that the money has 

been granted. These funds will be used for meals and transportation. 

• We added another bus, which makes two on the road now. The additional bus allows 

us to offer transportation to the Senior center for lunch and activities, as well as 

providing additional trips for shopping and doctor appointments.  

• The Fiscal report from The Cleveland Food Bank for 2020 was announced and of the 

eleven organization and cities that participate in meals and the Senior Market, we 

had the 3rd highest volume of food delivered/distributed with 68,017 pounds of food 

and 56,680 meals. The only surrounding cities to ours that participated were, The 

Donna Small Center distributed 6,685 pounds and Middleburg Heights distributed 

14,440 pounds. The 2 that distributed more food than Parma Heights Senior Center 

were Senior Center Resources (3100 Devonshire Rd, Cleveland 44109) distributed 

70,105 pounds of food and Villa Mercede (1331 W 70th St, Cleveland 44102) 80,617 

pounds of food. 

• Michelle Teresi, Building, Housing, & Recycling Coordinator 

• The first Household Hazardous Waste Collection was held on Sat. June 12th from 9:00 am to 

Noon.  We had a very good turn-out for the event. 

• The following are the upcoming events that we have for the rest of the summer 
o Our second Community Shred event will be held on Saturday, July 24th 
o The second Recycle Your Computer event will be held on Saturday, August 28th 
o The Scrap Tire Event will be held on Saturday, Sept. 11th 

• All of the Special Waste Collection events are held at the Parma Heights Service Garage from 

9:00 am to Noon. 



City Council Minutes 
June 28, 2021 

Page 3 of 8 

 

• The Saturday Refuse Drop-Offs, which are held on the 2nd and 4th Saturday of each month 

from 9:00 am to Noon, have also resumed this month.  The Saturday drop-offs were 

suspended due to the pandemic. 

• Residents may bring small amounts of excess waste that might have to be disposed of in the 

city dumpster located in the Service Yard. 

• Dan Bender, City Engineer 

• Manorford Drive Reconstruction Project:   
o Pavement markings is the last punch list item for this project. 

• Greenbrier Commons Watermain Replacement Project:  
o Contractor will begin pavement restoration work. 

• Layor Drive & Queens Highway Resurfacing Project 
o The resurfacing project is on hold until the watermain projects are completed on 

both Layor Drive and Queens Highway. 

• Notabene Drive, Layor Drive & Queens Highway Watermain Replacement Project: 
o Bid opening was held on Thursday, June 17, 2021. 
o Four contractors submitted bids on the project and the Engineers Official Totals are 

as follows: 

a. Terrace Construction Co., Inc. @ $909,724.50 

b. CATTS Construction @ $957,653.50 

c. Perk Company, Inc. @ $1,075,774.00 

d. Fabrizi Trucking & Paving Co., Inc. @ $1,159,389.50 
o With this project being part of the Suburban Watermain Renewal Program we are 

required to submit our recommendation to the City of Cleveland Division of Water 

for their approval.  Bid Tally and Terrace Construction Bid Form were submitted to 

Cleveland Water on June 18th for their review. 
o Cleveland Water approved our recommendation to award the contract to Terrace 

Construction Co., Inc. (Low Bidder) on June 18th. 
o I am here today to recommend to Council that Terrace Construction Co., Inc. be 

awarded the contract for the Notabene Drive, Layor Drive & Queens Highway 

Watermain Replacement Project. 
o I also asked council to permit the release of the bid bonds for the other bidders. 

Councilmember Stavole made a motion to award Terrace Construction Co., Inc. be awarded the contract 

for the Notabene Drive, Layor Drive & Queens Highway Watermain Replacement Project. Councilmember 

Everett Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds, Stavole and Walsh 

Nay: None 

Councilmember Stavole made a motion to the release of the bid bonds for the other bidders. Councilmember 

Everett Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds, Stavole and Walsh 

Nay: None 

• Mike Byrne, Mayor 



City Council Minutes 
June 28, 2021 

Page 4 of 8 

 

• The PARMA VET CENTER at 6325 York Road is hosting a Veteran’s Celebration for 

Independence Day Friday, July 2 from 11:30am-2:00pm in their parking lot. There will 

be free activities for children, free food, and prizes.  Everyone in the community is 

invited and welcome to attend. 

• Residents will receive a mailing this week about summer activities in Parma Heights 

including outdoor concerts, movies, and yoga, as well as special recycling events. 

• Instead of one day-long event, this year we are having two smaller Kids in the 

Commons events on Friday, July 16 and Friday, July 20 from 2-4 p.m.  Activities for 

families and children include a caricature artist, green screen, balloon twisting, glitter 

tattoos, bubbles, and open mic at the gazebo. 

• To date, our community sponsors this year are NOPEC and Jerry Kuhn’s Kwik Car 

Wash. Community partners include: The Cuyahoga County Public Library, Friends of 

the Library, Friends for Life Rehab, Greenbrier Art League, Parma Heights Historical 

Society, SW Community Services, Boy Scouts, Girl Scouts, UH Parma Medical Center, 

the PSE Credit Union, and Ann George Food Pantry.  Additionally, there will also be a 

few tables for local vendors to sell their crafts. 

LEGISLATION  

5. CONSIDERATION OF AN ORDINANCE ENACTING CHAPTER 680 [ABATEMENT OF CRIMINAL 
ACTIVITY NUISANCES] OF THE GENERAL OFFENSES CODE OF THE CITY OF PARMA HEIGHTS, OHIO 
AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.  ONE READING ONLY  
 

Councilmember Danczak made a motion to read the following Resolution by title only. Councilmember 

Stavole Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds, Stavole and Walsh 

Nay: None 

ORDINANCE TO BE READ BY TITLE ONLY 

AN ORDINANCE ENACTING CHAPTER 680 [ABATEMENT OF CRIMINAL ACTIVITY NUISANCES] OF THE 

GENERAL OFFENSES CODE OF THE CITY OF PARMA HEIGHTS, OHIO AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY  

Councilmember Danczak made a motion to suspend the rules. Councilmember Stavole Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds, Stavole and Walsh 

Nay: None 

RULES SUSPENDED  

Councilmember Danczak made a motion to adopt this Ordinance. Councilmember Stavole Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds and Stavole 

Nay: Walsh 

ORDINANCE IS ADOPTED. ORDINANCE NO. 2021-20 



City Council Minutes 
June 28, 2021 

Page 5 of 8 

 

6. CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE DIRECTOR OR PUBLIC 

SERVICE TO ADVERTISE FOR COMPETITIVE BIDS FOR RESIDENTIAL WASTE COLLECTION AND 

RECYCLING SERVICES, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.  ONE READING ONLY.  

Councilmember Everett made a motion to read the following Resolution by title only. Councilmember 

Stavole Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds, Stavole and Walsh 

Nay: None 

RESOLUTION TO BE READ BY TITLE ONLY 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE DIRECTOR OR PUBLIC SERVICE TO ADVERTISE FOR 

COMPETITIVE BIDS FOR RESIDENTIAL WASTE COLLECTION AND RECYCLING SERVICES, AND DECLARING 

AN EMERGENCY.   

Councilmember Everett made a motion to suspend the rules. Councilmember Stavole Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds, Stavole and Walsh 

Nay: None 

RULES SUSPENDED  

Councilmember Everett made a motion to adopt this Resolution. Councilmember Stavole Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds, Stavole and Walsh 

Nay: None 

RESOLUTION IS ADOPTED. RESOLUTION NO. 2021-09 

 

7. CONSIDERATION OF AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC SERVICE TO 

PURCHASE ONE (1) 2022 DEMERS MXP 170 TYPE 1 AMBULANCE FROM PENN CARE, INC., AND 

DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.  ONE READING ONLY.  

Councilmember Haase made a motion to read the following Ordinance by title only. Councilmember 

Stavole Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds, Stavole and Walsh 

Nay: None 

RESOLUTION TO BE READ BY TITLE ONLY 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC SERVICE TO PURCHASE ONE (1) 2022 DEMERS 

MXP 170 TYPE 1 AMBULANCE FROM PENN CARE, INC., AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 Councilmember Haase made a motion to suspend the rules. Councilmember Stavole Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds, Stavole and Walsh 

Nay: None 



City Council Minutes 
June 28, 2021 

Page 6 of 8 

 

RULES SUSPENDED  

Councilmember Haase made a motion to adopt this Resolution. Councilmember Stavole Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds, Stavole and Walsh 

Nay: None 

ORDINANCE IS ADOPTED. ORDINANCE NO. 2021-21 

Councilmember Stavole made a motion to remove agenda item #8 from the agenda. Councilmember 

Walsh Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds, Stavole and Walsh 

Nay: None 

8. CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION TO ISSUE A MORATORIUM ON THE GRANTING OF BUILDING 

PERMITS OR CERTIFICATES OF OCCUPANCY FOR ANY BUILDING, STRUCTURE, USE OR CHANGE OF 

USE THAT WOULD ENABLE ANY BUSINESS THAT ENGAGES IN HOOKAH (ALSO CALLED SHISHA AND 

NARGILE, A WATERPIPE) ESTABLISHMENTS KNOWN AS “BARS OR LOUNGES” FOR A PERIOD NOT 

TO EXCEED TWELVE MONTHS FROM THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THIS RESOLUTION IN ORDER TO 

ALLOW THE CITY ADMINISTRATION, COUNCIL AND THE PLANNING COMMISSION TO REVIEW 

APPLICABLE OHIO STATUTES, CRIMINAL CODES AND THE CITY OF PARMA HEIGHTS ZONING CODE 

RELATIVE TO SUCH USE AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.  ONE READING ONLY. 

 

9. CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE AMOUNTS AND RATES AS DETERMINED BY 

THE BUDGET COMMISSION AND AUTHORIZING THE NECESSARY TAX LEVIES AND CERTIFYING 

THEM TO THE COUNTY FISCAL OFFICER.  ONE READING ONLY. 

Councilmember Stavole made a motion to read the following Resolution by title only. Councilmember 

Everett Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds, Stavole and Walsh 

Nay: None 

RESOLUTION TO BE READ BY TITLE ONLY 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE AMOUNTS AND RATES AS DETERMINED BY THE BUDGET COMMISSION 

AND AUTHORIZING THE NECESSARY TAX LEVIES AND CERTIFYING THEM TO THE COUNTY FISCAL 

OFFICER.   

Councilmember Stavole made a motion to suspend the rules. Councilmember Everett Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds, Stavole and Walsh 

Nay: None 

RULES SUSPENDED  

Councilmember Stavole made a motion to adopt this Resolution. Councilmember Everett Seconded. 



City Council Minutes 
June 28, 2021 

Page 7 of 8 

 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds, Stavole and Walsh 

Nay: None 

RESOLUTION IS ADOPTED. RESOLUTION NO. 2021-11 

 

10. CONSIDERATION OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PARMA HEIGHTS CODIFIED ORDINANCE SECTION 

1131.02 DEFINITIONS.  SECOND OF THREE READINGS. 

Councilmember Rounds made a motion to read the following Ordinance by title only. Councilmember 

Everett Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds, Stavole and Walsh 

Nay: None 

ORDINANCE TO BE READ BY TITLE ONLY 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PARMA HEIGHTS CODIFIED ORDINANCE SECTION 1131.02 DEFINITIONS  

 

11. CONSIDERATION OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PARMA HEIGHTS CODIFIED ORDINANCE SECTION 

1185.02 PERMITTED USES.  SECOND OF THREE READINGS. 

Councilmember Everett made a motion to read the following Ordinance by title only. Councilmember 

Stavole Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds, Stavole and Walsh 

Nay: None 

ORDINANCE TO BE READ BY TITLE ONLY 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PARMA HEIGHTS CODIFIED ORDINANCE SECTION 1185.02 PERMITTED USES  

 

12. CONSIDERATION OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PARMA HEIGHTS CODIFIED ORDINANCE SECTION 

1195.05 COMMERCIAL USE-SPECIFIC REGULATIONS.  SECOND OF THREE READINGS. 

Councilmember Danczak made a motion to read the following Ordinance by title only. Councilmember 

Stavole Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds, Stavole and Walsh 

Nay: None 

ORDINANCE TO BE READ BY TITLE ONLY 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PARMA HEIGHTS CODIFIED ORDINANCE SECTION 1195.05 COMMERCIAL 

USE-SPECIFIC REGULATIONS.   

 

13. PUBLIC SESSION 



City Council Minutes 
June 28, 2021 

Page 8 of 8 

 

Council President Gallo reminded the audience if they have a comment to stand, state their name, 

address and city if they live outside of Parma Heights and there is a three-minute limit to speak.  All 

comments and questions will be directed to the Council President.  

• Pat Downer – 6260 Pearl Rd, thanked Trish James for the great work with the senior center. 

She is thankful for all the events and praised the staff for their hard work and stated the staff 

is making the senior center the envy of other communities. 

• Shirley Massaroni – 6643 Rochelle Blvd, thanked the ladies and gentleman of meals on 

wheels were a bright spot during the pandemic. 

14. Executive session 

• Adjourn to executive session to discuss pending litigation 

Councilmember Stavole made a motion to move into executive session. Councilmember Everett 
Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds, Stavole and Walsh 

Nay: None 
 
Council adjourn to executive session at 7:31 PM 
Council reconvenes from executive session at 8:13 PM 
 

15. ADJOURNMENT 

Councilmember Stavole made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Councilmember Everett Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds, Stavole and Walsh 

Nay: None 

MEETING ADJOURNED AT 8:13 PM 

 

 

________________________________  ________________________________ 

Chrissy Reason, CMC     Marie Gallo 

Clerk of Council     Council President   



JUNE 28,2020 CC MEETING















City Council 

Special Meeting Minutes 

July 7, 2021 

7:00 PM 

 

1.  ROLL CALL WAS TAKEN AND THE FOLLOWING MEMBERS WERE PRESENT: 

• Members Present 

Councilmember Danczak 

Councilmember Everett 

Council President Gallo 

Councilmember Haase 

Councilmember Rounds 

Councilmember Stavole 

Councilmember Walsh 

• Members Absent 

None 

• Also Present 

Mayor Byrne 

Katie Iaconis, Director of Finance 

Mark Schneider, Assistant Director of Law  

Chrissy Reason, Clerk of Council 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS REGARDING THE FOLLOWING ORDINANCES  

• AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE FIVE ZONING ADMINISTRATION OF THE PARMA HEIGHTS 

CODIFIED ORDINANCE SECTION 1131.02 – DEFINITIONS 

• AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE NINE - ZONING USE DISTRICTS OF THE PARMA HEIGHTS 

CODIFIED ORDINACE SECTION 1185.02 – PERMITTED USES 

• AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE NINE - ZONING USE DISTRICTS OF THE PARMA HEIGHTS 

CODIFIED ORDINANCE SECTION 1195.05 – COMMERCIAL USE SPECIFIC REGULATIONS 

Council President Gallo opened the public hearing up for public comment.  

There were no public comments. 

Council President Gallo closed the public hearing. 

LEGISLATION  

4. CONSIDERATION OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PARMA HEIGHTS CODIFIED ORDINANCE SECTION 

1131.02 DEFINITIONS.  THIRD OF THREE READINGS. 

Councilmember Rounds made a motion to read the following Ordinance by title only. Councilmember 

Everett Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds, Stavole and Walsh 

Nay: None 



City Council Minutes 
July 7, 2021 
Page 2 of 3 

 

ORDINANCE TO BE READ BY TITLE ONLY 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PARMA HEIGHTS CODIFIED ORDINANCE SECTION 1131.02 DEFINITIONS  

Councilmember Rounds made a motion to adopt this Ordinance. Councilmember Everett Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds, Stavole and Walsh 

Nay: None 

ORDINANCE IS ADOPTED. ORDINANCE NO. 2021-22 

 

5. CONSIDERATION OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PARMA HEIGHTS CODIFIED ORDINANCE SECTION 

1185.02 PERMITTED USES.  THIRD OF THREE READINGS. 

Councilmember Everett made a motion to read the following Ordinance by title only. Councilmember 

Stavole Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds, Stavole and Walsh 

Nay: None 

ORDINANCE TO BE READ BY TITLE ONLY 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PARMA HEIGHTS CODIFIED ORDINANCE SECTION 1185.02 PERMITTED USES 

Councilmember Everett made a motion to adopt this Ordinance. Councilmember Stavole Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds, Stavole and Walsh 

Nay: None 

ORDINANCE IS ADOPTED. ORDINANCE NO. 2021-23 

 

6. CONSIDERATION OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PARMA HEIGHTS CODIFIED ORDINANCE SECTION 

1195.05 COMMERCIAL USE-SPECIFIC REGULATIONS.  THIRD OF THREE READINGS. 

Councilmember Danczak made a motion to read the following Ordinance by title only. Councilmember 

Everett Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds, Stavole and Walsh 

Nay: None 

ORDINANCE TO BE READ BY TITLE ONLY 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PARMA HEIGHTS CODIFIED ORDINANCE SECTION 1195.05 COMMERCIAL 

USE-SPECIFIC REGULATIONS.   

Councilmember Danczak made a motion to adopt this Ordinance. Councilmember Everett Seconded. 



City Council Minutes 
July 7, 2021 
Page 3 of 3 

 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds, Stavole and Walsh 

Nay: None 

ORDINANCE IS ADOPTED. ORDINANCE NO. 2021-24 

 

7. ADJOURNMENT 

Councilmember Stavole made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Councilmember Everett Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds, Stavole and Walsh 

Nay: None 

MEETING ADJOURNED AT 7:06 PM 

 

 

________________________________  ________________________________ 

Chrissy Reason, CMC     Marie Gallo 

Clerk of Council     Council President   



City Council 

Special Meeting Minutes 

August 9, 2021 

7:00 PM 

 

1.  ROLL CALL WAS TAKEN AND THE FOLLOWING MEMBERS WERE PRESENT: 

• Members Present 

Councilmember Danczak 

Councilmember Everett 

Council President Gallo 

Councilmember Haase 

Councilmember Rounds 

Councilmember Stavole 

Councilmember Walsh 

• Members Absent 

None 

• Also Present 

Mayor Byrne 

Chrissy Reason, Clerk of Council 

Mark Schneider, Assistant Director of Law  

Dave Byrnes, Director of Safety 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

LEGISLATION  

3. CONSIDERATION OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 965.11 (SOLID WASTE COLLECTION FEE) 

OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF PARMA HEIGHTS, TO CERTIFY TO THE COUNTY 

FISCAL OFFICER THE COSTS DUE TO THE CITY FOR WASTE COLLECTION FEES, AND DECLARING AN 

EMERGENCY.   ONE READING ONLY. 

Councilmember Walsh made a motion to read the following Ordinance by title only. Councilmember 

Everett Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds, Stavole and Walsh 

Nay: None 

ORDINANCE TO BE READ BY TITLE ONLY 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 965.11 (SOLID WASTE COLLECTION FEE) OF THE CODIFIED 

ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF PARMA HEIGHTS, TO CERTIFY TO THE COUNTY FISCAL OFFICER THE COSTS 

DUE TO THE CITY FOR WASTE COLLECTION FEES, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY  

Councilmember Walsh made a motion to suspend the rules. Councilmember Everett Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds, Stavole and Walsh 

Nay: None 



City Council Minutes 
August 9, 2021 

Page 2 of 4 

 

RULES SUSPENDED  

Councilmember Walsh made a motion to adopt this Ordinance. Councilmember Danczak Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds, Stavole and Walsh 

Nay: None 

ORDINANCE IS ADOPTED. ORDINANCE NO. 2021-25 

 

4. CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION ASSESSING THE COST OF ABATING A CERTAIN NUISANCE, 

AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.  ONE READING ONLY. 

Councilmember Everett made a motion to read the following Ordinance by title only. Councilmember 

Stavole Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds and Stavole 

Nay: Walsh 

RESOLUTION TO BE READ BY TITLE ONLY 

A RESOLUTION ASSESSING THE COST OF ABATING A CERTAIN NUISANCE, AND DECLARING AN 

EMERGENCY. 

Councilmember Everett made a motion to suspend the rules. Councilmember Stavole Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds and Stavole 

Nay: Walsh 

RULES SUSPENDED  

Councilmember Everett made a motion to adopt this Resolution. Councilmember Stavole Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds and Stavole 

Nay: Walsh 

RESOLUTION IS ADOPTED. RESOLUTION NO. 2021-12 

 

5. CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A 

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF PARMA HEIGHTS AND THE OHIO 

PATROLMEN’S BENEVOLENT ASSOCIATION [PATROLMEN], AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.  ONE 

READING ONLY. 

 

Councilmember Danczak made a motion to read the following Resolution by title only. Councilmember 

Everett Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds and Stavole 

Nay: Walsh 



City Council Minutes 
August 9, 2021 

Page 3 of 4 

 

RESOLUTION TO BE READ BY TITLE ONLY 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A COLLECTIVE BARGAINING 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF PARMA HEIGHTS AND THE OHIO PATROLMEN’S BENEVOLENT 

ASSOCIATION [PATROLMEN], AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.   

Councilmember Danczak made a motion to suspend the rules. Councilmember Everett Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds and Stavole 

Nay: Walsh 

RULES SUSPENDED  

Councilmember Danczak made a motion to adopt this Resolution. Councilmember Everett Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds and Stavole 

Nay: Walsh 

RESOLUTION IS ADOPTED. RESOLUTION NO. 2021-13 

 

6. CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A 

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF PARMA HEIGHTS AND THE OHIO 

PATROLMEN’S BENEVOLENT ASSOCIATION [CAPTAINS/SERGEANTS], AND DECLARING AN 

EMERGENCY.  ONE READING ONLY. 

 

Councilmember Haase made a motion to read the following Resolution by title only. Councilmember 

Danczak Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds and Stavole 

Nay: Walsh 

RESOLUTION TO BE READ BY TITLE ONLY 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A COLLECTIVE BARGAINING 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF PARMA HEIGHTS AND THE OHIO PATROLMEN’S BENEVOLENT 

ASSOCIATION [CAPTAINS/SERGEANTS], AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY 

Councilmember Haase made a motion to suspend the rules. Councilmember Everett Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds and Stavole 

Nay: Walsh 

RULES SUSPENDED  

Councilmember Haase made a motion to adopt this Resolution. Councilmember Everett Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds, Stavole and Walsh 

Nay: None. 



City Council Minutes 
August 9, 2021 

Page 4 of 4 

 

RESOLUTION IS ADOPTED. RESOLUTION NO. 2021-14 

 

7. CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ACCEPTANCE OF THE MATERIAL TERMS OF 

THE ONE OHIO SUBDIVISION SETTLEMENT PURSUANT TO THE ONE OHIO MEMORANDUM OF 

UNDERSTANDING AND CONSISTENT WITH THE TERMS OF THE JULY 21, 2021 NATIONAL OPIOID 

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.  ONE READING ONLY. 

 

Councilmember Rounds made a motion to read the following Resolution by title only. Councilmember 

Everett Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds, Stavole and Walsh 

Nay: None. 

RESOLUTION TO BE READ BY TITLE ONLY 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ACCEPTANCE OF THE MATERIAL TERMS OF THE ONE OHIO 

SUBDIVISION SETTLEMENT PURSUANT TO THE ONE OHIO MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AND 

CONSISTENT WITH THE TERMS OF THE JULY 21, 2021 NATIONAL OPIOID SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT, 

AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.   

Councilmember Rounds made a motion to suspend the rules. Councilmember Stavole Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds, Stavole and Walsh 

Nay: None. 

RULES SUSPENDED  

Councilmember Rounds made a motion to adopt this Resolution. Councilmember Everett Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds, Stavole and Walsh 

Nay: None. 

RESOLUTION IS ADOPTED. RESOLUTION NO. 2021-15 

 

8. ADJOURNMENT 

Councilmember Stavole made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Councilmember Everett Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds, Stavole and Walsh 

Nay: None. 

MEETING ADJOURNED AT 7:39 PM 

________________________________  ________________________________ 

Chrissy Reason, CMC     Marie Gallo 

Clerk of Council     Council President   



City Council 

Special Meeting Minutes 

August 30, 2021 

7:00 PM 

1.  ROLL CALL WAS TAKEN AND THE FOLLOWING MEMBERS WERE PRESENT: 

• Members Present 

Councilmember Danczak 

Councilmember Everett 

Council President Gallo 

Councilmember Haase 

Councilmember Rounds 

Councilmember Stavole 

Councilmember Walsh 

• Members Absent 

None 

• Also Present 

Mayor Byrne 

Chrissy Reason, Clerk of Council 

Mark Schneider, Assistant Director of Law  

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

3. EXECUTIVE SESSION  

• Adjourn to executive session to discuss pending and imminent litigation 

Councilmember Stavole made a motion adjourn to executive session to discuss pending and 

imminent litigation. Councilmember Everett Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds, Stavole and Walsh 

Nay: None 

• Executive Session Began: 7:01 PM 

• Executive Session Ended: 8:04 PM 

LEGISLATION  

4. CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO THE FIRST 

AMENDED TO A SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT WITH ATC SIXTEEN REALTY, INC. AND DECLARING 

AN EMERGENCY.   ONE READING ONLY. 

Councilmember Rounds made a motion to read the following Resolution by title only. 

Councilmember Everett Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds, Stavole and Walsh 

Nay: None 

RESOLUTION TO BE READ BY TITLE ONLY 



City Council Minutes 
August 30, 2021 

Page 2 of 4 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO THE FIRST AMENDED TO A SETTLEMENT 

AGREEMENT WITH ATC SIXTEEN REALTY, INC. AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY  

Councilmember Rounds made a motion to suspend the rules. Councilmember Everett Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds, Stavole and Walsh 

Nay: None 

RULES SUSPENDED  

Councilmember Rounds made a motion to adopt this Resolution. Councilmember Everett Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds, Stavole and Walsh 

Nay: None 

RESOLUTION IS ADOPTED. RESOLUTION NO. 2021-16 

 

5. CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO A 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH DEALPOINT MERRILL LLC [DEVELOPER] AND DECLARING AN 

EMERGENCY.  ONE READING ONLY. 

Councilmember Stavole made a motion to read the following Resolution by title only. 

Councilmember Everett Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds, Stavole and Walsh 

Nay: None 

RESOLUTION TO BE READ BY TITLE ONLY 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH 

DEALPOINT MERRILL LLC [DEVELOPER] AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

Councilmember Stavole made a motion to suspend the rules. Councilmember Everett Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds, Stavole and Walsh 

Nay: None 

RULES SUSPENDED  

Councilmember Stavole made a motion to adopt this Resolution. Councilmember Everett Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds, Stavole and Walsh 

Nay: None 

RESOLUTION IS ADOPTED. RESOLUTION NO. 2021-17 

 



City Council Minutes 
August 30, 2021 

Page 3 of 4 

6. CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SETTLEMENT OF THE LITIGATION 

CAPTIONED BAYMARK HEALTH SERVICES OF OHIO, INC. ETAL. V. CITY OF PARMA HEIGHTS ETAL., 

CASE NO. 1:20-CV-02754 AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.  ONE READING ONLY. 

Councilmember Stavole made a motion to suspend the rules and modify by adding the phrase 

“$200,000 as” in Section 2 between “provide” and “contribution” as to read:  

Section 2.   The city has agreed to provide $200,000 as contribution toward the settlement and the 

funds to pay for this expenditure are authorized to be derived from the General Fund. 

Councilmember Everett Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds, Stavole and Walsh 

Nay: None 

Councilmember Danczak made a motion to read the following Resolution by title only. 

Councilmember Everett Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds, Stavole and Walsh 

Nay: None 

RESOLUTION TO BE READ BY TITLE ONLY 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SETTLEMENT OF THE LITIGATION CAPTIONED BAYMARK HEALTH 

SERVICES OF OHIO, INC. ETAL. V. CITY OF PARMA HEIGHTS ETAL., CASE NO. 1:20-CV-02754 AND 

DECLARING AN EMERGENCY  

Councilmember Danczak made a motion to suspend the rules. Councilmember Stavole Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds, Stavole and Walsh 

Nay: None 

RULES SUSPENDED  

Councilmember Danczak made a motion to adopt this Resolution. Councilmember Everett Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds, Stavole and Walsh 

Nay: None 

RESOLUTION IS ADOPTED. RESOLUTION NO. 2021-18 

 

 

7. ADJOURNMENT 

Councilmember Stavole made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Councilmember Everett Seconded. 

Aye: Danczak, Everett, Gallo, Haase, Rounds, Stavole and Walsh 

Nay: None. 

 



City Council Minutes 
August 30, 2021 

Page 4 of 4 

MEETING ADJOURNED AT 8:09 PM 

 

 

________________________________  ________________________________ 

Chrissy Reason, CMC     Marie Gallo 

Clerk of Council     Council President   













PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT 
 
 
The Planning Commission met on Wednesday, June 30, 2021 to review the revised 
application for BayMark Health Services of Ohio, Inc.  The Planning Commission 
approved the revised application. 
 
The Planning Commission met on Monday, July 12, 2021 to consider the 
Conditional Use Application and Site Plan Application for DealPoint Merrill, LLC.  A 
representative for DealPoint gave the presentation. 
 
On Monday, August 9, 2021, a Public Hearing was held regarding the Conditional 
Use Application for DealPoint Merrill, LLC.  Comments were received from the 
contiguous neighbors. 
 
On Monday, August 30, 2021, the Planning Commission approved the proposed 
conditions for the Conditional Use Application for DealPoint Merrill, LLC.  The 
Commission referred the application to the Council for review pursuant to 1135.06 
{c} of the Codified Ordinances. 
 
In the event that a permit for a conditional use is granted by the Council subject to 
conditions, the grantee shall, in writing within ten days following such Council 
action, acknowledge such approval and unconditionally accept and agree to such 
conditions. 


	CC Agenda 2021 09 13
	4A - CC Minutes 2021 06 28
	4B - CC Minutes 2021 07 07 SP
	4C - CC Minutes 2021 08 09 SP
	4D - CC Minutes 2021 08 30 SP
	6 - Tax Rate Resolution TY2021 CY2022
	June July August Planning Reports



